M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 20, 2002
9:44 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 37, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:44 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Al so Attending:

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchor age: SARA FI SHER- GOAD,
Al aska Industrial Developnment and Export Authority and Al aska
El ectric Association

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 182- PRO RATA REDUCTI ONS I N BENEFI T PROGRAMS

The Conmmttee adopted an anmendnent and the bill noved from
Committee.

SB 185- PCE BASED ON HI GHEST COST
The Conmittee heard from the Alaska Electric Association. A
commttee substitute and an amendnent were adopted. The bill was
held in Committee.
#SB182

SENATE BI LL NO. 182

"An Act requiring reductions in paynents to individuals under
certain benefit prograns if appropriations are not sufficient

SFC- 02 (1) 03/ 20/ 02



to fully fund the statutorily established | evels of paynents.”

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

AT EASE 9:45 AM/ 9:46 AM

Co-Chair Donley remnded this legislation inplenents a pro rata
process. He noted testinony indicated that sonme funds shoul d not be
included in this provision, such as the fisherman’s fund.

Amendnent  #1: This anmendnent inserts additional statutory
references in Section 1, page 2, line 2. The anended | anguage reads
as foll ows.

(j) The provisions of (i) of this section do not
apply to paynent under AS 23.30 (Wrkers' Conpensation
Act), AS 23.35.060-23.35.100, AS 25.23.190 - 25.23. 240,
| oan prograns, state enployee retirement benefit
prograns, or benefit prograns for which other provisions
of | aw address underfundi ng.

Co-Chair Donley noved for adoption, explaining this anmendnment
addresses the aforenenti oned concerns.

There was no objection and the anendnent was ADOPTED.

Senat or Austerman referenced a nenorandum by the sponsor relating
to SJR 43 [copy on file.]

Co- Chair Donl ey spoke of discussions that sone federal prograns
m ght have "mai ntenance of efforts requirenents” that could prevent
pro rata frombeing inplenmented. He pointed out SIR 43 requests the
federal governnment to inpose a noratoriumon mai ntenance of efforts
requirenents for a short period each year to allow states to
"readjust their levels" for various federal prograns.

Co-Chair Donley offered a notion to nove CS SB 182 (FIN) from
Commttee with a forthcomng indetermnate fiscal note from the
Department of Adm nistration, and eight new indetermnate fisca

notes fromthe Ofice of Managenent and Budget, Al Agencies, and
the Departnent of Health and Social Services: Public Assistance,
Al aska Tenporary Assistance Program Public Assistance, Genera

Rel i ef Assistance; Public Assistance, Adult Public Assistance;

Purchased Services, Foster Care Base Rate; Purchased Services,

Foster Care Augnented Rate; Purchased Services, Foster Care Speci al

Need; and, Public Assistance, Tribal Assistance.

SFC- 02 (2) 03/ 20/ 02



Senat or Austerman infornmed he would not object to reporting the
bill fromCommttee but that he mght vote against its passage from
t he Senate.

The bill MOVED from Commttee w thout objection
#SB185

SENATE BILL NO 185

"An Act relating to the basis for determning eligibility for
and the armount of power cost equalization paynents; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commttee. Co-Chair Donley remnded that a Senate Finance
subcomm ttee heard statew de public testinony on this |egislation.

Co-Chair Donley stated one goal of this bill is to restructure the
power cost equalization (PCE) program so that it could be fully
funded by the PCE endownent fund. He indicated the "target" annua
cost is approximately $13 mllion. He stressed considerable effort
has been made to "sinplify those revisions and to nmake themas fair
as possible.”

Co-Chair Donley stated the PCE endowrent fund |ost noney in the
previ ous year and that even if the fund posted earnings it could
not generate enough incone to fund the PCE program He comrented
that when the endownent was established, the funds were
appropriated under the condition that it would "solve the problem™
He pointed out the state does not have an endownent for education,
public safety or public health. He continued that "one of the
conponents that did not materialize, as was represented at the
tinme" was contributions fromthe National Petrol eum Reserve-Al aska
(NPRA) in the formof federal inpact aide to rural communities. He
attributed this, plus the failure of the endowrent to produce "what
| think of as a very, very over-optimstic return rate" of seven
percent, to the inability of the endowrent to fully fund the PCE
program He pointed out the average return rate for |arge
foundati ons and endownents is approximtely four to five percent.

Co-Chair Donley furthered the intent of this legislationis also to
"bring sone true fairness to the program" He infornmed that several
Al askan comunities are not eligible to participate in the PCE
program al t hough the rates in those communities are higher then the
rates in qualifying communities.

SFC- 02 (3) 03/ 20/ 02



Co-Chair Donley indicated that a proposed conmttee substitute,
Version “W, addresses these goals in tw ways. First, he stated,
it increases the rate that electricity is "subsidized down to". He
spoke to the conplication of the current PCE forrmula and attenpts
to assess the average usage of nedium and snmall conmunities and
establish that anobunt as the anount the state woul d subsidize. He
pointed out this nethod is nore fair than the current nethod of
conpari son to Anchorage, Juneau and Fairbanks. He qualified, "there
are sone anbiguities" but that the range is between 15.69 and 18. 84
cents per kilowatt-hour, and the rate set in conmttee substitute
is the average of 16.75 cents per kilowatt-hour.

Co-Chair Donley spoke to the other significant change in the
commttee substitute, which addresses the consunption limt. He
expl ai ned the current consunption limt is 500 kilowatts per nonth
and the average use is approxinmately 450 kilowatts per nonth. He
remarked the current Iimt does not encourage conservation nor does
it consider seasonal usage. Therefore, he said the conmttee
substitute stipulates a limt of 450 kilowatts per nonth for the
six winter nonths and 350 for the six sumer nonths.

Co-Chair Donley stated these changes would result in savings for
t he program and | ower the annual cost to approxi mately $12, 840, 000.
He commented this amount "is still very generous” and "is within
the real m of reasonabl e expectations of the endowent." He asserted
that for the "long-termhealth” of this program it is essential to
| ower the annual expenses to an anmount that could be paid fromthe
endowrent .

Co-Chair Kelly asked the actual dollar anpunt this year.

Co-Chair Donley replied the answer depends upon who is asked. He
noted over $15.7 mllion was funded to the PCE program for FY 02
and the Governor requested $17 mllion for FY 03. He noted the PCE
program contains a pro rata provision, and the endowrent did not
earn noney in the past year. He stressed it was nade clear when
t he endownent was established that the level of funding for the
program was not guaranteed and would be partially based on
contributions fromthe NPRA and the performance of the endownent.

Co-Chair Donley noved for adoption of CS SB 185, 22-LS0465\Was a
wor ki ng draft.

Senator W1 ken asked about a federal econom c stinulus package and
pendi ng federal energy |egislation, which mght contain funds for
t he PCE program

Co-Chair Donley replied there is a possibility that the federa

SFC- 02 (4) 03/ 20/ 02



governnent would make an appropriation to the PCE endownent of
approximately $5 mllion per year for "several years". He qualified
that this would not be significant to raise the balance of the
endownent to neet the current |evel of expenditures, although it
coul d have an inpact over tine. He stated that if the federal funds
wer e appropriated and the endownent generated enough noney to fund
the programat the current formula | evel, the higher |evel could be
reinstated. He suggested the Legislature revisit the issue at a
| ater tinme.

Senator WIlken asked if a fiscal note was available for the
proposed conm ttee substitute.

Co-Chair Kelly answered there is not.

Co-Chair Donley referenced handouts: Table A, PCE Estinmates,

Comm ttee Substitute for Senate Bill 185; Table B, PCE Esti mates,

Conmparison of CS SB 185 wth existing statute funded at

$15, 700, 000; Table 1, Al aska Residential Electric Usage and Cost—
Fi scal Year 2001, Sorted by Uility; Table 2, Al aska Residenti al

Usage and Cost—iscal Year 2001, Sorted by Effective (After PCE)

Rat e per kWh; and, Table 3, Al aska Residential Electric Usage and
Cost —i scal Year 2001, Sorted by Pre-PCE Rate per kWh [copies on
file.] He explained this information shows the affect of this

| egi sl ati on on each community. He noted the proposed changes woul d
result in some communities receiving a small increase.

SARA FlI SHER- GOAD, Al aska Industrial Developnent and Export
Authority and Alaska Electric Association, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that the tables are based on
i nformati on she provided to Co-Chair Donley's office.

Senator Austerman informed he had been active in the process to
establish the PCE endownent. He had understood that the endowrent
was funded "based upon what we thought we could get into it at the
time" and that additional funds would be sought to contribute to
the endowrent. He recalled original estinmates of $35 million
federal funds that could be received over five to seven years.

Senat or Austerman did not oppose the "floor concept” of limting
t he PCE program spending to $12.8 annual ly, although he was unsure
16.75 cents per kilowatt-hour is an accurate figure.

Senat or Aust erman next conpared the United States and portions of
Al aska | ocated along the rail belt, which have access to a power
grid and the ability to secure the nbst econom c power sources, to
rural areas of Alaska, which have limted access to power sources.
Because of this, he said, the PCE program should be continued.

SFC- 02 (5) 03/ 20/ 02



Senat or Austerman voiced a concern that the PCE program spendi ng
would be limted to $12.8 mllion without a "buffer” in the event
t he endowrent grew and could sustain the proposed annual $15.7
mllion expenditures. He expressed interest in discussing nethods
to acconplish this without appropriating additional state funds.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the anpbunt necessary for the endowrent to
ensure an adequate rate of return sufficient to fund the PCE
program

Senat or Austernman answered that $190 mllion was established as the
maxi num anount the state would contribute to the endowrent and
woul d consist of $90 million fromthe sale of the Four Dam Pool
project and $100 million from the Constitutional Budget Reserve
(CBR) Fund. He furthered an additional $40 nmillion would be
necessary for the endowrent to fully fund the PCE program at $15.7
mllion annually, and that these funds were to be secured from
ot her sources.

Senat or Aust erman enphasi zed the investnent market did not perform
as anticipated. He pointed out that although it was predicted the
sal e of the Four Dam Pool would take two years to finalize, it took
| onger and the funds were not actually deposited into the endowrent
until January 2002.

The comm ttee substitute was ADOPTED w t hout objecti on.

Co-Chair Kelly asked what inpact the potential $35 mllion federa
appropriation would have on the endowrent.

Senat or Austerman replied this anmount woul d i ncrease the endownrent
al nost enough to adequately fund the PCE program $15.7 annual ly. He
noted that if the appropriations were all ocated over several years,
nore tinme would be necessary before the endowrent fund was
sufficient.

Senator W/l ken calculated that to fund the program at the FY 03
Governor's request of $17.2 mllion, using a five-percent rate of
return, the endowrent bal ance must be $345 nmillion. He furthered
that at a seven-percent rate of return the bal ance would have to be
$245 mllion to fund the program He then cal cul ated that funding
the program $15.7 nillion annually, using five-percent earnings,
t he endowrent nust be $315 million.

It was established the current bal ance of the endownent is $190

mllion and the estinmated required need to fund the programis $230
mllion.

SFC- 02 (6) 03/ 20/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly reiterated that an annual rate of return of seven
percent is too optimstic.

Co-Chair Donley noted that even if the program spending were
reduced to $12.8 nillion, the earnings of the endownent woul d be
i nadequate to fully fund the program He opined, "The origina
endownent theory... didn't work wthout the NPRA noney being
i nvol ved. "

Senator Austerman clarified $9 mllion from NPRA was appropri ated
the year the endowrent was established, although it was not
deposited to the endowrent and was used to fund the programitself.

Ms. Fisher-Coad affirned $9, 163,000 mllion was deposited into the
PCE program fund

Senator Austerman asked if it was anticipated that additional funds
woul d be appropriated to the endowrent.

Co-Chair Kelly replied that funds woul d be appropri ated each year
fromthe NPRA

Co-Chair Donley recalled discussions were held in the Senate
Fi nance Commttee regarding reform ng the PCE program and that "a
commtnment was nade for the NPRA noney" and the decision was
reached that if the NPRA funds were received, the program spending
would not have to be reduced. He renenbered the co-chair
enphasi zing this point.

AT EASE 10:13 AM/ 10: 15 AM

Amendnent #1: This anmendnent adds intent |anguage to the commttee
substitute to read as foll ows.

It is the intent of the legislature that if the anount
avai l abl e for appropriation fromthe Power Cost Equalization
Fund under AS 42.45.085 is nore than required to fund the
Power Cost Equalization program the legislature will review
the statutory provisions to consider adjustnents the maxi mum
eligible KW usage, the m nimum and maxi nrum charges al |l owed
for calculating Power Cost Equalization paynents and ot her
provi sions of the program

Co- Chair Donley explained this language is in the event federa
funds are appropriated to the endownent. He noved for adoption.

Senat or Austernman objected for di scussion purposes. He expressed he

SFC- 02 (7) 03/ 20/ 02



did not know the "overall intent" of the Conmttee with regard to
the PCE program He suggested if the intent is to continue to
control the process, this anmendnent is appropriate. However, he
advised if the intention is to establish a self-sufficient program
this amendnent is not necessary.

Co-Chair Kelly relayed discussions he had with the sponsor and
anot her affected Commttee nenber where he | earned the sponsor's
intention to establish an operable PCE formula with an endowrent
that is protected. He also shared conversations with comunity
menbers indicate the fund should be protected as well. He remarked
the difficulty is that the state does not have the funds avail abl e
to deposit into the endowrent to allow the program to be self-
sufficient. He suggested the program should therefore be scal ed
down to allow the endowent to grow through federal appropriations,
with the intention of readdressing the formul a when the endownent
is better established.

Senat or Austerman did not oppose the concept of "pulling back"” but
did not want to have to address the matter of funding the PCE
program every year.

Co-Chair Donley wunderstood and expressed simlar desires for
muni ci pal assistance and funding for education. However, he
asserted that the state constitution requires the Legislature to
address every expenditure each year and prohi bits the dedication of
funds, which he supported. He explained there could be a year when
not all prograns could be funded and the Legislature nmnust
prioritize education, public safety and public health.

Co-Chair Kelly comrented that technically "everything is on the
tabl e every year” with regard to funding for the PCE program but
assured that if the endowent were operating properly, it would
probably not be revisited.

Senator Ward asked if the proposed |evel of services is the sane as
the anount provided currently under the pro rata provisions. He
noted the current division director [director not specified] is the
first to inplenent the pro rata provision.

Co-Chair Donley replied, "The director’s pro ration target this
year is 15.7 “ mllion dollars. He noted this is with the intent of
withdrawing $7 mllion from the corpus of the endownent, which
defeats the | ong-range goal of the endownent.

Co-Chair Kelly conmmented this is an inprovenment over previous

practices of funding the programat "whatever level". He qualified
earlier intentions relating to the original endowrent "went out the

SFC- 02 (8) 03/ 20/ 02



w ndow' when it was |earned the NPRA appropriations "would not
materialize". He stressed an act of congress woul d be necessary to
secure this funding. He opined the goal of the Commttee should be
to achieve a healthy endowent that is self-supporting. He
i ndi cated that unpredictable funding is a health and safety issue.

Senat or Austerman asserted that regardless of NPRA funding, it was
understood there would be a period of tine before the endowrent
began earning interest.

Co-Chair Donley commented this was one reason he voted against the
| egi sl ation establishing the PCE endowrent because it was portrayed
as elimnating the need for general funds, although he knew
otherwise. He admtted the delay in the sale of the Four Dam Pool
was unanti ci pat ed.

Senator Austerman clarified it was understood that the interest
earni ngs of the endownent would not totally fund the PCE program

Senat or Austerman reenphasi zed the need to protect the principal of
t he endownrent. He asked the anmount of general funds necessary to
fund the program

Co-Chair Donley answered it depends on the revenue of the endowrent
in the upcom ng fiscal year.

Senator Austerman renoved his objection to the adoption of
Amendnent #1.

The amendnent was ADOPTED wi t hout obj ecti on.
Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:28 AM

SFC- 02 (9) 03/ 20/ 02



